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CORPORATE PROFILE
Celebrating our 80th Anniversary in 2004, Stanley

Furniture Company, Inc. (Nasdag: STLY) is a
leading designer and manufacturer of high-quality
residential wood furniture. Focused exclusively on
the upper-medium-priced segment, Stanley’s offerings
range from traditional to contemporary with fashion-
forward designs for rooms throughout the home
that have captured nine coveted Pinnacle Awards
from the American Society of Furniture Designers.
Our blended manufacturing approach combining
production in Virginia and North Carolina with
offshore sourcing emphasizes continuous improve-
ment in quality and customer responsiveness while
reducing costs. The shipment of orders to retail
stores is among the fastest in the industry. Stanley’s
products are sold through fumiture specialty stores,
department stores and furniture store chains.
Additional information about Stanley is available at
stanleyfurniture.com.

MISSION

Profitably offer the best product in the Stanley
segment and support it with excellent quality and
service.

STRATEGY

Position Stanley as a wood resource in the
upper-medium residential market segment offering
a diversified product line distributed through
multiple channels,

CORE BELIEFS

Style leadership with a value orientation
supported by excellent quality and service is

the foundation for success.

Uncompromising integrity in all our dealings

will ensure that associates, customers and suppliers
are always treated with respect and fairness.
Superior profitability will assure perpetuation of
the Company and the well-being of our stock-
holders, associates, customers and community

neighbors.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Sales and earnings: ‘
Net sales ! 8.8% $ 260,641 § $ 239,485 $ 234,322 $ 283,092 $ 264,717 $ 247,371
Operating income ; 17.2% 26,216 22,361 16,661 34,937 34,290 27,944
Net income © . 20.5% 15,150 12,571 8,321 19,540 19,213 14,483
Per share:
Net income, diluted L 26.5% $ 234 0§ 1.85 $ 1.21 $ 263 $ 247 $ 1.82
Dividends paid 0.20 |
Market price at year end " 35.5% 31.50 | 23.25 23.77 24.13 18.38 18.25
Financial position at year end:
Cash $ 2,509 $ 9227 $ 1,955 $ 1825 § 3597 $ 6,791
Working capital ; 64,455 62,944 51,271 53,759 38,531 44,408
Total assets : 164,203 172,485 163,003 179,206 170,522 154,374
Total debt 22,700 - 29,614 37,053 52,169 38,404 43,539
Stockholders' equity : 102,558 99 687 87,294 79,477 79,573 62,368
Total debt as a percentage
of total capitalization 1 18.1% | 22.9% 29.8% 39.6% 32.6% 41.1%
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

e are pleased to report another year of solid performance

despite a difficult economy and the turmoit created by low-
cost imports in the wood segment of the furniture industry. Sales
increased 8.8%, operating income 17.2%, net income 20.5% and
earnings per share 26.5% compared to 2002. This represented
significant gains in market share at a time when the industry reported
decreasing sales for our competition in the upper-medium price
segment of residential wood furniture. Our operating profit margin
of 10.1% continues to rank among the best in the industry. We are
pleased with these results during these tumultuous times.

Fourth quarter sales grew 14.9% and earnings per share
improved 18.6%. This marked the highest sales of any quarter in our
Companys history and the seventh consecutive quarter of sales
growth over the comparable prior year period. Clearly, we enter

2004 with significant momentum.

Industry Transition Continues

Last year in this letter we discussed the paradigm shift taking
place in the industry caused by the massive move of manufacturing
offshore, primarily to China. It is estimated that approximately half
of all wood furniture sold in the United States is now imported. This
past year we joined with 27 other manufacturers representing over
one-half of all domestic bedroom producers to file a dumping
petition against Chinese manufacturers. Qur position is straight-
forward. We are strong proponents of free trade, importing off and
on for nearly 20 years and exporting to over 40 countries. However,
there is strong evidence that China is in violation of certain
international trade regulations. We think the regulatory authorities
should resolve this matter. Regardless of the outcome, the global
economy will continue to impact our industry and we intend to

adapt and compete.

Future Challenges

The future is all about operating in a global economy. What
should be our domestic capacity? How do we continue to develop
successful offshore partners? How do we provide our customers the
"best product”? This is what your management team thinks. about
every day. Our track record is solid, but we understand it means little

if not continued.

A Winning Strategy But Execution Sets Us Apart

Stanley is a focused, niche player in a fragmented industry, with
no industry player having even 10% of total residential furniture
sales. We compete only in the upper-medium priced residential

wood segment, offering furniture for every room in the home. This
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allows us to concentrate our product development, manufacturing
and distribution efforts exclusively on this market segment. Unlike
some of our competitors who are pursuing vertical integration
strategies with dedicated stores, Stanley’s multi-channel distribution
strategy includes independent furniture stores, regional chains,
department stores, designers and international accounts.

At the core of our company is a belief that in a consumer goods
business, the company with the best product wins. Our focus is on
creating exciting designs, producing quality products and providing
excellent service. It is that simple yet that difficult.

Defined as something the consumer wants at a price she is
willing to pay, best product is determined by both design and price.
Blending efficient domestic manufacturing in highly focused facilities
with intelligent outsourcing of certain component parts and finished
goods allows us to offer a compelling value proposition. This
combination gives Stanley a competitive advantage by offering
higher value and well-styled product, without sacrificing our culture
of high quality and fast delivery. Our market share gains in the past
year provide encouraging evidence that our customers are

responding favorably and that we are executing the strategy well.

Creating Stockholder Value

Your management is committed to creating stockholder value
on an ongoing basis. Since going public in 1993, your company has.
grown earnings per share at a compounded annual growth rate of
13%.and the stock has performed accerdingly: At the foundation-of-
our financial strategy is an emphasis on strong cash flow that allows
us to invest in the future, repurchase our stock {over $735 miltion in
the last seven years) and pay cash dividends to our stockholders. In
2003 we repaid $6.9 million of debt, repurchased $14.8 million of
our stock and paid cash dividends of $1.3 million. We are excited
about our recent announcement to double the cash dividend

initiated last year. We fully realize our responsibility to provide you

Stanley Furniture Company



Albert L. Prillaman (seated) and Jeffrey R. Scheffer

with a return on your investment. As we have said previously, while
not ruling out strategic acquisitions, we remain skeptical of the
synergies and stockholder benefits of growth through acquisition.
We intend to remain a focused, niche player in a fragmented furniture
industry.

Your management is committed to continuing the tradition of
superior results and creating stockholder value on a sustained basis
with uncompromising integrity in all that we do. Your directors
continue to offer wise counsel and demand results. We appreciate
your continued trust and financial support. We look forward to

reporting another year of progress.

Qtbedt  Fullomarr [t @ﬁm

Albert L. Prillaman Jetfrey R. Scheffer
Chairman of the Board DPresident & Chief Executive Officer
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oumnoAmerice

w. . Aregistered trademark of Stanley Furniture Company,

Industry Leader in
“Youth Furniture ———

This past year, Young America®

stepped into the spotlight as a regis-

tered trademark of Stantey Furniture: -

Company with its own graphic
; narketing focus. The
industry leader in youth furniture,
Young America is the choice of

sophisticated consumers faced with
an increasing number of options in
the growing youth turniture market.

Differentiated by classic styling with

same quality construction as adult

he broadest in its market scgment.
Harbor Town
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A trademark of Stanley Furn{tgre Company, Inc. ﬁ
!
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Product Line Extension
Moving into the Nursery

Proud new parents (and grandparents) can now choose Young
America before the baby officially joins the family. Young

™

America Baby™ adds the new dimension of cribs and nursery
furniture to existing product assortments. Designed to function
far beyond the baby’s first years, Young America Baby reaches
the consumer earlier, capturing additional purchases as the

child grows.

Moving Throughout the Home

Because the needs and activities of kids today are the focus
of American family life, the bedroom is no longer the child’s
only domain. Young America is designed for small rooms where
space is the challenge. Whether it's the playroom, the bath-
room or the basement, Mom and Dad rest easier knowing
Young America furniture is designed with kid-friendly function
and safety.

and Nature
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Stanley Collections
.f Are All About
the Look of Luswury

Stanley Collections present beautiful

bedroom, dining room, home enter- -
tatnment, home office and accent o
RO "

to create lumiture that "consumers
NailigloN ot %gw&*ﬁ{"@&“‘t&ﬂ@%wﬂﬂ*%
tor the many ways that it can be used
over time. Like a lavorite armoire that
has moved from home to home and

4 .
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.

adapts o many scttings, we design
Turniture to serve a multitude of func-
tions tor the many stages of life.

RV

American Modern
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Villa Antica

Creating Memories

Today’s consumers seek beautifully designed furniture of high quality
that also offers durability and comfort. They want stylish furniture at
affordable prices. It must be the right styling to transform a house into a
dream home. Like a holiday meal shared with family and close friends,

Stanley Collections help create tomorrow's memories of home.

Designed for Entertaining

As homes and electronics change, so does Stanley Collections home
entertainment furniture. We keep abreast of rapidly changing TV sizes and
formats so that our furniture is already displayed in retail stores when the
new technology becomes available. With renewed interest in home
entertaining, consumers expect to house their latest entertainment

technology in furniture with style, convenience and comfort.

DPortofino
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Villa Antica

Those Special Accents

Unique accent furniture adds the finishing
touches to a room, whether it's completing a
room for home entertainment, an entrance hall,
the bedroom or the living room. We look for
functional inspiration: a taller cocktail table for
today's higher sofas, a movable shelf for the sofa
table, a handsome multi-use wine console or
diminutive wicker cubes with lift-off tops for
storage. Then we add special design details to
make each an individually memorable piece, a

jewel in the Stanley Collections.

Step into the Library

The home office has come of age, often emerging
as a cozy library or a setting within a room. No
longer relegated to the basement or extra bedroom,
our home office desks, file cabinets and bookcases
appear in rooms all over the house. Because wher-
ever our home office furniture resides, it is always

equally beautiful and functional.

Provincia

Stanley Furniture Company
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ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
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Stanley Furniture Company, inc.

PART
item 1. Business
General

Staniey Furniture Company, inc. (the “Company” or “Stanley”) is a leading designer and manufacturer of
residential wood furniture exclusively targeted at the upper-medium price range.  The Company offers diversified
product lines across all major style and product categories within this price range. This product depth and
extensive style selection makes the Company a complete wood fumiture resource for retailers in its price range
and allows the Company to respond more quickly to shifting consumer preferences. The Company has
established a broad distribution network that includes independent furniture stores, department stores and regional
furniture chains. To provide its products and support this broad distribution neiwork, the Company has
implemented a blended operating strategy combining efficient and flexible manufacturing processes with offshore
sourcing of component parts and finished goods. The Company emphasizes continuous improvement in its
manufacturing and sourcing processes to enable it to continue providing competitive advantages to its customers,
such as quick delivery, reduced inventory investment, high quality, and value.

In 2001, the Company began to expand its offshore sourcing as it began implementing its blended operating
strategy. The increased offshore sourcing created excess capacity in the Company’s manufacturing facilities and
the Company closed its former West End, North Carolina facility beginning in late 2001 and realigned production at
its Lexington, North Carolina facility in 2003.

Products and Styles

The Company's product lines cover all major design categories, and include dining room, bedroom, home
office, home entertainment, accent tables and youth furniture marketed as Young America®. Recently the
Company began expanding its Young America® offerings to include playroom, accent pieces for the bath and
infant furniture marketed as Young America Baby™. The Company believes that the diversity of its product lines
enables it to anticipate and respond quickly te changing consumer preferences and provides retailers a complete
wood furniture resource in the upper-medium price range. The Company believes that its products represent good
value and that the quality and style of its fumniture compare favorably with more premium-priced products.

The Company provides products in a variety of woods, veneers, and finishes. The number of styles by
product line currently marketed by the Company is set forth in the following table:

Number of Styles
DINING FOOM....oviivieeeeieee et s besreaeve e e enr e sresree e naesaesbenis et ereerieaens 24
BEATOOM.....ooieeetiieti et e et s e e e st et e sas e ers e reaeat s s maesbeanesaseensseaaasssenbeens 24
Youth furniture (YOUNg AMEMHCET)...........c.oveuvevereveree e sees s seemssesass e sanans 22
Home entertainment and accent tables ... e 20
HOMIE OffIC8 ettt eeta s et e s arreseessssssssssssssnsssssnnans 18

These product lines cover all major design categories including European traditional,
contemporary/transitional, American traditional and country/casual designs.

The Company designs and develops new product styles each year to replace discontinued items or styles
and, if desired, to expand product lines. The Company's product design process begins with marketing personnel
identifying customer needs and conceptualizing product ideas, which generally consist of a group of related
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fumniture pieces. A variety of sketches are produced, usually by Company designers, from which prototype
furniture pieces are built prior to full-scale production. The Company consults with its marketing personnel, sales
representatives, and selected customers throughout this process and introduces its new product styles primarily at
the fall and spring international furniture markets.

Distribution

The Company has developed a broad domestic and international customer base and sells its furniture through
approximately 80 independent sales representatives to independent furniture retailers, department stores and
regional furniture chains. Representative customers in alphabetical order include, Carson Pirie Scott, Dillards,
Federated Depariment Stores, Furnitureland South, Jordan's, Marshall Fields, Nebraska Furniture Mart, Raymour
& Flanigan, Robb & Siucky and Rooms To Go Kids. The Company believes this broad network reduces its
exposure to regional recessions, and allows it to capitalize on emerging channels of distribution. The Company
offers tailored marketing programs to address each channel of distribution.

The general marketing practice foliowed in the furniture industry is to exhibit products at international and
regional furniture markets. In the spring and fall of each year, an eight-day furniture market is held in High Point,
North Carolina, which is attended by most buyers and is regarded by the industry as the intemational market. The
Company utilizes approximately 63,000 square feet of showroom space at the High Point market to introduce new
products, increase sales of its existing products, and test ideas for future products.

The Company sold to approximately 2,600 customers during 2003, and approximately 4% of the Company's
sales in 2003 were to international customers. No single customer accounted for more than ten percent of the
Company's sales in 2003. No material part of the Company's business is dependent upon a single customer, the
loss of which would have a material effect on the business of the Company. The loss of several of the Company's
major customers could have a material impact on the business of the Company.

Manufacturing and Offshore Sourcing

The Company's manufacturing strategy combines offshore sourcing with domestic manufacturing. The
Company's domestic manufacturing operations complement its product and distribution strategy by emphasizing
continuous improvement in quality and customer responsiveness while reducing costs. These manufacturing
processes produce smaller, more frequent and cost-effective runs. The Company focuses on identifying and
eliminating manufacturing bottlenecks and waste, employing statistical process control and, in turn, "adjusting
manufacturing schedules on a daily basis, using cellular manufacturing in the production of components, and
improving its relationships with suppliers by establishing primary supplier relationships. In addition, a key element
of the Company's manufacturing processes is to involve all Company personnel, from houry associates to
management, in the improvement of the manufacturing processes by encouraging and responding to ideas to
improve quality and to reduce manufacturing lead times.

The Company also integrates the sourcing of selected component parts and finished items with its
manufacturing operations to further enhance its product and distribution strategy. The Company acquires selected
finished items and component parts from a limited number of offshore suppliers who can meet the Company's
quality specifications, production efficiency and scheduling requirements. -Approximately 20% of the Company’s
sales volume in 2003 came from products sourced from six countries with China representing the largest volume.
Approximately 30% of 2004 sales is expected to come from sourced products.

The Company operates manufacturing facilities in North Carolina and Virginia consisting of an aggregate of
approximately 3.2 million square feet. The Company considers its present facilities to be generally modem, well-
equipped and well-maintained.

The Company shipped customer orders within 15 days on average during 2003 with average finished goods
inventory turns of 5.5. The Company schedules production of its various styles based upon actual and anticipated
4



orders. Since the Company ships customer orders on average in 15 days, management believes that the size of
its backlog is not necessarily indicative of its long-term operations. The Company’s backiog of unshipped orders
was $19.6 million at December 31, 2003 and $15.4 million at December 31, 2002,

Raw Materials

The principal materials used by the Company in manufacturing its products include lumber, veneers, plywood,
particle board, hardware, glue, finishing materials, glass products, laminates, fabrics and metals. The Company
uses a variety of species of lumber, including cherry, oak, ash, poplar, pine and maple. The Company's five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 24% of its purchases in 2003. The Company believes that its sources of
supply for these materials are adequate and that it is not dependent on any one supplier.

Competition

The Company ranked 21* among the largest fumiture manufacturers in North America based on 2002 sales,
according o Furniture/Today, a trade publication. The fumiture industry is highly competitive and includes a large
number of foreign and domestic manufacturers, none of which dominates the market. In addition, competition has
significantly increased from foreign manufacturers in countries such as China which have lower production costs.
The markets in which the Company competes include a large number of relatively small manufacturers; however,
certain competitors of the Company have substantially greater sales volumes and financial resources than the

- Company. Competitive factors in the upper-medium price range include style, price, guality, delivery, design,
service, and durability. The Company believes that its manufacturing processes, its sourcing strategy, its long-
standing customer relationships and customer responsiveness, its consistent support of existing diverse product
lines that are high quality and good value, and its experienced management are competitive advantages.

Associates

At December 31, 2003, the Company employed approximately 2,500 associates. None of the Company's
associates are represented by a labor union. The Company considers its relations with its associates to be good.

Trademarks

The trade names of the Company represent many years of continued business, and the Company believes
such names are well recognized and associated with excellent quality and styling in the fumiture industry. The
Company owns a number of frademarks, none of which is considered to be material to the Company.

Governmental Regulations

The Company is subject to federal, state, and local laws and regulations in the areas of safety, health, and
environmental poliution controls. Compliance with these laws and regulations has not in the past had any material
effect on the Company's earnings, capital expenditures, or competitive position; however, the effect of such
compliance in the future cannot be predicted. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance
with applicable federal, state, and local safety, health and environmental reguiations.




Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report are not based on historical facts, but are forward-looking statements.
These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as "believes," "estimates,”
"expects,” "may," "will,” "should," or "anticipates” or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or comparable
terminology, or by discussions of strategy. These statements reflect the Company's reasonable judgment with
respect to future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those in the forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include competition in the furniture
industry including competition from lower-cost foreign manufacturers, the Company's success in implementing its
blended strategy of expanded offshore sourcing and domestic manufacturing, disruptions in offshore sourcing
including those arising from supply or distribution disruptions or changes in political or economic conditions

affecting the countries from which the Company obtains offshore sourcing, international trade policies of the -

United States and countries from which the Company obtains offshore sourcing, the cyclical nature of the fumiture
industry, fluctuations in the price for lumber which is the most significant raw material used by the Company,
fluctuations in foreign freight cost, credit exposure to customers, capital costs and general economic conditions.
Any forward looking statement speaks only as of the date of this filing, and the Company undertakes no obligation
to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new developments or otherwise.

Available Information

The Company fites annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). These filings are available to the public over the Internet
at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document that the Company files
at the SEC's public reference room located at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. Please call the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information_on the public reference room.

The Company's principal Internet address is www.stanleyfurniture.com. The Company makes available
free of charge on www.stanleyfurniture.com its annual, quarterly and current reports, and amendments to those
reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such material with, or furnishes
it to, the SEC.

In addition, you may request a copy of these filings (excluding exhibits) at no cost by writing,
telephoning, faxing or e-mailing the Company at the following address, telephone number, fax number or e-mail
address: o . o o

Stanley Furniture Company, Inc.

1641 Fairystone Park Highway

Stanleytown, Virginia 24168

Attention: Mr. Douglas |. Payne

Telephone: (276) 627-2000

Fax 276-629-5114

Or E-mail your request to: Investor@Stanleyfurniture.com




Item 2. Properties

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the Company's principal properties. The Company
believes that all these properties are well maintained and in good condition. All Company plants are equipped with
automatic sprinkler systems and modem fire protection equipment, which management believes are adequate. Alt
facilities set forth below are active and operational. Production capacity and extent of utilization of the Company’s
facilites are difficult to quantify with certainty because maximum capacity and utilization varies periodically
depending upon the product being manufactured, the amount of component parts and finished items outsourced,
and the utilization of the labor force at the facility. In this context, the Company estimates that its facilities operated
at approximately 70-75% of capacity in 2003, principally on a one shift basis. The Company believes available
capacity at its facilities together with the integration of selected imported component parts and finished items will be
adequate to expand production to meet anticipated product requirements.

Location
Stanleytown, VA
Martinsville, VA
Lexington, NC
Robbinsville, NC
High Point, NC

item 3. Legal Proceedings

Approximate

Facility Size
Primary Use (Square Feet)
Manufacturing and Corporate Headquarters 1,721,000
Manufacturing 300,000
Manufacturing 635,000
Manufacturing 540,000
Showroom 63,000

Owned
or

Leased

Owned
Owned
Owned
Owned
Leased

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in claims and lawsuits none of which currently, in
management’s opinion, will have a material adverse affect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Nane.




Executive Officers of the Registrant

The Company's executive officers and their ages as of January 1, 2004 are as follows:

Name : Age Position

Albert L. Prillaman ............ccieeeerecreriienenens veererrenens 58 Chairman

Jeffrey R. Scheffer........cccvceviciiniiiceccienrce, 48 President and Chief Executive Officer

Douglas . Payne..........c.ccovvmrveeieecccieees st eeene, 45 Executive Vice President —Finance and
Administration and Secretary

Philip D. Hangy ........cccccvev i 49 Executive Vice President — Marketing/Sales —
Stanley Collections

Robert A. Sitler, Jre e, 43 Senior Vice President — Operations

R. Glenn Priltlaman .........cccocecvmenivinnneccnee i, 32 Senior Vice President ~ Marketing/Sales —

Young America®

Albert L. Prillaman has been Chairman of the Board of Directors since September 1988. Mr. Prillaman
served as Chief Executive Officer of the Company from December 1985 to December 2002. Mr. Prillaman also
served as President from 1985 until April 2001. Prior to 1985, Mr. Prillaman served as Vice President of the
Company and President of the Stanley Fumiture division of the Company's predecessor since 1983, and in various
executive and other capacities with the Stanley Furniture division of the predecessors Company since 1969. Albert
L. Prillaman is the father of R. Glenn Prillaman.

Jeffrey R. Scheffer has been Chief Executive Officer since December 2002. Mr. Scheffer has been
President since April 2001. He also served as Chief Operating Officer from April 2001 to December 2002. Prior to
his employment with the Company, Mr. Scheffer served as President of American Drew, a fumiture manufacturer,
for five years.

Douglas i. Payne has been Executive Vice President — Finance and Administration since April 2001. Mr.
Payne previously held the position of Senior Vice President — Finance and Administration since December 1996.
He was Vice President of Finance and Treasurer of the Company from September 1993 to December 1996. Prior
to that time, Mr. Payne held various financial management positions since his employment by the Company in
1983. Mr. Payne has been Secretary of the Company since 1988.

Philip D. Haney has been Executive Vice President — Marketing/Sales — Stanley Collections since August
2003. Mr. Haney previously held the position of Executive Vice President — Marketing and Sales since his
employment by the company in October 2002, Prior to his employment with the Company, Mr. Haney served as
President of Karastan Rug and Home from August 2002 to October 2002 and was Senior Vice President,
Marketing and Sales at Karastan from 1998 to August 2002.

Robert A. Sitler, Jr. has been Senior Vice President — Operations since November 2003. Mr. Sitler
previously held the position of Vice President — Manufacturing Services since November 2001. Prior to that
time, Mr. Sitler held various management positions in credit, manufacturing, human resources, supply
management and global sourcing since his employment by the company in 1985.

R. Glenn Prillaman has been Senior Vice President — Marketing/Sales — Young America® since August
2003. Mr. Prillaman previously held the position of Vice President — Product Manager since January 2002 Mr.
Prillaman held various management positions in product development for Young America® since his return to
the Company in June 1999. From January 1996 to June 1999, Mr. Prillaman was employed by various golf
course management companies and golf equipment manufacturers. From September 1994 to January 1996,
Mr. Prillaman was employed by the Company in product development and was an independent sales
representative for the Company from July 1993 to August 1994. R. Glenn Prillaman is the son of Albert L.
Prillaman.



PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's common stock is quoted on The Nasdaq Stock Market ("Nasdaq") under the symbol STLY.
The table below sets forth the high and low sales prices per share, for the periods indicated, as reported by
Nasdaq.

Dividends
High Low Paid

2003

First QUAarter........cccvvveririnerermsnnsesessnnsmressssnsas $25.15 $18.26 $.05
Second QUANET ........ccceerererseraermemessenerersscenines 27.42 20.69 .05
Third Quarter........... S 33.19 26.18 .05
Fourth Quarter .......ccvciencinenecisaanreesanens 33.08 29.50 .05
2002

FirSt QUAIEE. .....cvceeeeerireeeerese st nes s $33.25 $23.29

Second QUAMET ........cccovve e ereveeneenens 36.82 26.44

Third QUAMET .......cveeeei e et eeanes 27.05 17.70

Fourth QUAMET ..o oo 26.20 19.75

As of February 13, 2004, there were approximately 1,800 beneficial stockholders. Prior to 2003 the Company used
all eamings to finance the growth and development of its business and to repurchase its common stock.
Accordingly no cash dividends were paid through December 31, 2002. The Company's Board of Directors initiated
an annual dividend policy of $.20 per share in January 2003 and increased the annual dividend policy to $.40 per
share in January 2004. The Company’s dividend policy is subject to review and revision by the Board of Directors
and any future payments will depend upon the financial condition, capital requirements and eamings of the
Company, as well as other factors that the Board of Directors may deem relevant. The Company's ability to pay
dividends and repurchase its common stock is restricted under certain loan covenants. See Note 3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2003:

Number of sharesto be ~ Weighted-average Number of shares
issued upon exercise exercise price of - remaining available for
of outstanding options, outstanding options, future issuance under
warrants and rights warrants, and rights equity compensation plans
Equity compensation plans _
approved by stockholders 719,000 $25.68 241,000
Equity compensation plans '
not approved by stockholders'" 100,000 $27.88
Total 819,000 - $2595 241,000

) Represents a one time option grant to Jeffrey R. Scheffer, in connection with his employment as President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Company in April 2001.




ltem 8. Selected Financial Data

Years Ended Becember 31,

003 2002 2001 2000 1999
{in thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data:

Net saleS ...ococeiiiveec e $260,641 $239,485 $234,322 $283,092 $264,717
Cost of SAlES ....ovvvvvevecre e, 198,788 180,905 181,356 214,498 196,631
Restructuring and related charges(1) .... 3,548 2,280
Gross profit..........co e, 64,853 55,032 50,676 88,583 68,086

Selling, general and administrative

EXPENSES ..vuveereecriereririnieseressseeesssseeesens 35,637 32,671 30,482 33,656 33,796
Unusual charge(2) ......oceeeevecvnreeeennne, 2,800
Restructuring and related charges(1).... 733

Operating iNCoOMEe .....coveevvviiererieeiienen, 26,218 22,381 16,661 34,837 34,290
Other expense (income), net ................ : (203) (219) 47 (82) 388
Interest eXpense ... vieee e 2748 3,080 4,007 4.003 3478

Income before income taxes .............. 23,671 19,480 12,607 31,016 30,424
Income taxes.....ccovvvev e 8521 8,219 4,286 11,476 11.211

NetiNCOME ..ot i $ 15150 § 12,571 $ 8321 §.19.540 $ 19213
Basic Earnings Per Share:
NEt INCOME .....iveeierercrceee e evr § 240 $§ 190 § 126 § 276 3% 270
Weighted average shares ..........ccooe..e. 6,326 6,609 6.610 7.076 7,119
Diluted Earnings Per Share:
NEINCOME ..o, § 234 % 18 $ 121 & 263 & 247
Weighted average shares(3)......c........... 6,462 8,782 6,900 7.429 7,770
Cash dividends paid per share............... § .20
Balance Sheet and Other Data:
Cash ..o e $ 2509 §$ 9227 % 1855 § 1825 $§ 3,597
Inventones.........occevviececie e 54,638 54,158 49,522 54,423 43,580
Working capital .........ccoovierneicninricenn, 64,455 62,944 51,271 53,759 38,531
Total aSSetS......ccviiirinei e, 164,203 172,485 163,003 179,206 170,522
Long-term debt including ‘ :

current maturities ..........ccceveccnennne 22,700 29,614 37,053 52,169 38,404
Stockholders' equity(3) ....coovevrevererrninennn, 102,558 99,687 87,294 79477 79,573
Capital expenditures(4) ........cccoerevreenn. 1,243 1,037 4,172 6,068 25,566
Stock repurchases:

Shares ......ococvrevvvneiseeeereee e 566 158 86 869 227

Total COSt oo, $14,788 % 3,086 $ 1,973 § 19,754 $ 4708

(1) The Company recorded restructuring and related charges in 2002 of $3.6 million (or $.34 per diluted share)
and $3.0 million (or $.29 per diluted share) in 2001 for the closure of a manufacturing facility. See Note 8
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) In 2001, the Company recorded a $2.8 million (or $.26 per diluted share) charge to write off amounts due
from a major customer. See Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) in 2002, the Company issued 43,000 shares to the Stanley Retirement Plan.

(4) The 1998 capital expenditures were primarily for capacity expansion projects including a new facility.
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item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto contained elsewhere herein.

Overview

Over the past few years the residential wood furniture industry has experienced a surge in low cost
imported products, primarily from China. imports have grown dramatically in the past few years and according
to industry sources it is estimated that imports now account for approximately half of all residential wood
furniture sold in the United States.

In response to this trend we continue to develop a blended strategy of combining our domestic
manufacturing capabilities with an expanding offshore sourcing program and to realign manufacturing capacity.
We are integrating selected imported component parts and finished items in our product line to lower costs,
provide design flexibility and offer a better value to our customers. Sourced products represented approximately
20% of our sales in 2003 and we anticipate this percentage to level off at approximately 30% of sales for 2004.

The increase in offshore sourcing has created excess capacity in our manufacturing facilities which has
caused us to reduce and realign manufacturing capacity. We closed a manufacturing facility in 2002 (our former
West End, North Carolina factory) and reduced operations at another manufacturing facility in 2003. We have
realigned production so that each of our current manufacturing facilities is focused on specific product lines of
compatible products to improve guality and lower production costs.

These actions have reduced our manufacturing capacity by approximately 15% to 20%. However, we
operated at approximately 70% to 75% of this reduced capacity in 2003. Near-term operating margins will
continue to be negatively impacted by low capacity utilization rates as the proportion of sourced goods is expected
to grow from approximately 20% of sales in 2003 to approximately 30% of sales in 2004.

We are reluctant to further reduce our manufacturing capacity at the present time in order to provide
protective capacity for improved demand and the uncertainty of the outcome of the dumping investigation currently
being conducted by the U.S. Department of Commerce and the International Trade Commission. If the
investigation determines Chinese manufacturers are illegally dumping wooden bedroom fumiture into the U. S.
market, tariffs will be applied to future imports of wooden bedroom furniture from China. While we cannot predict
the outcome or quantify the potential impact, we believe a favorable ruling on behalf of the petitioners will have a
positive impact on our financial performance since we source a smailer percentage of wooden bedroom furniture
from China than most of our competition.

We will continue to evaluate our manufacturing capacity needs considering increased offshore sourcing,
current and anticipated demand for our products, the outcome of the dumping investigation regarding wooden
bedroom furniture produced in China, overall market conditions and other factors we consider relevant. Further
capacity reductions could cause asset impairment or other restructuring charges in the future.
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Results of Operations

The foliowing table sets forth the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income:
For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net 8aleS ..o 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofsales ......coooveeviieicirieceeeece 76.3 75.5 774
Restructuring and related charges................ 1.5 1.0
Gross Profit......cci i neees 23.7 23.0 216
Selling, general and administrative expenses 13.6 - 136 13.0
Unusual charge ......ccovveeeverecceencnninnesenenes 1.2
Restructuring and related charges............... 3
Operating income........cccivvervevevincennreenen, 10.1 9.4 7.1
Other income, Net.....oocceiice e, A A :
Interest expense...........ivevveeivr e, 1.1 1.3 1.7
income before income taxes...........cccooee. 9.1 8.2 54
INCOME tAXES ..iiii et 33 2.9 1.8
Netincome ....ocoeveeevveveeceriienennne ORI 58% —5.3% —3.6%
2003 Compared to 2002

Net sales increased $21.2 million, or 8.8%, in 2003 compared to 2002. The increase was due primarily to higher
unit volume. We believe this higher unit volume is due to gains in market share resuiting from our blended operating
strategy that has allowed us to offer improved product styling and value to our customers. While industry sales trends
improved in the second half of 2003, the industry reported a sales decrease in 2003.

Gross profit margin for 2003 increased to 23.7% from 23.0% in 2002. Lower gross profit margin in 2002 was due
primarily fo restructuring and related charges resulting from closing a factory to reduce our manufacturing capacity. The
gross profit margin for 2003 increased due to savings from sourcing initiatives and the realignment of manufacturing
capacity. These savings were mostly offset by transition and start up costs from increased offshore sourcing, lower
production levels at our manufacturing facilities, and other inflationary costs including wages and employee benefits.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales was 13.6% for both 2003 and 2002.
Selling, general and administrative expenditures increased $3.0 million in 2003 due primarily to higher sales, expansion of
our offshore sourcing program and increased marketing and product development costs. These increases were partially
offset by a $780,000 decrease in bad debt expense. We recognized $760,000 of bad debt expense in 2002 compared to
a net reversal of $20,000 in 2003 due to a decrease in accounts receivable from certain customers experiencing financial
difficulties. We expect the trend of hlgher sourcmg costs and increases in certain marketing and product development
costs to continue in 2004.

As a result of the above, operating income for 2003 increased to $26.2 million, or 10.1% as a percéniage of net
sales, from $22.4 million, or 9.4% as a percentage of net sales, in 2002.

interest expense for 2003 decreased due primarily to lower average debt levels.

The Company's effective income tax rate for 2003 increased to 36.0% from 35.5% in 2002, due primarily to higher
state income taxes resulting from the phase-out of certain state tax credits.
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2002 Compared to 2001

Net sales increased $5.2 million, or 2.2%, for 2002 compared to 2001. The increase was due primarily to higher
unit volume.

Gross profit margin for 2002 increased to 23.0% from 21.6% in 2001. The increase was due primarily to cost
savings resulting from closing our former West End, North Carolina facility, offshore sourcing initiatives, and lower raw
material cost. This improvement was partially offset by increased restructuring related charges, lower production levels
and higher wage and employee benefit expenses, primarily increased health care claims and pension expense.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for 2002 as a percentage of net sales increased to 13.6% from
13.0% for 2001. Seliing, general and administrative expenses increased $2.2 million compared to 2001 primarily as a
result of the reinstatement of management bonuses due to higher earnings, higher selling expenses related to new
product introductions and increased sales.

An unusual charge of $2.8 million was recorded in 2001 to write off amounts due from a major customer, which
declared bankruptcy and closed its stores.

As a result of closing a facility to reduce our manufacturing capacity, we recorded total restructuring and related
charges of $6.5 million. In 2002, we recorded restructuring and related charges, as a component of cost of sales, of $3.5
million pretax, that included $1.7 million for accelerated depreciation and $1.8 million for other exit costs, including piant
operating inefficiencies and severance cost. In 2001, we recorded restructuring and related charges of $3.0 million that
included $2.0 million in accelerated depreciation and $1.0 million for other exit costs. The restructuring accrual at
December 31, 2002 of $450,000 consists of a lease obligation for real estate and severance cost.

As a resulit of the above, operating income increased to $22.4 milion from $16.7 million in 2001.
Interest expense for 2002 decreased due primarily to lower average debt leveis.

The Company’s effective income tax rate increased to 35.5% for 2002 from 34.0% in 2001. The lower 2001
percentage was due to lower state income taxes.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity inciude cash on hand, cash from operations and amounts available under a $25.0 miflion
credit facility. These sources have been adequate for day-to-day expenditures, debt payments, purchases of the
Company’s stock, capital expenditures and payment of cash dividends to stockholders. We expect these sources of
liquidity to continue to be adequate for the future.

Working capital has increased due to higher overall finished goods inventory levels as the proportion of our sales
from sourced products has increased. To support our delivery performance, we maintain a higher inventory level of
sourced products compared to those we manufacture. This is partially offset by Iower raw material inventories. We
expect this trend to continue in 2004.

Capital expenditures for 2004 are anticipated to be approximately $2.0 million to $3.0 million for narmal replacements
and improvements. As both our sales and the proportion of sourced goods increase we anticipate the need for additional
warehouse space. Near-term we anticipate leasing space to accommodate our needs. However, should we decide to
invest in our own facilities this could increase our anticipated capital expenditures.

During 2003, the Company purchased 566,000 shares of its stock in the open market at an average price of $26.15.
At December 31, 2003, approximately $10.2 million remains authorized by our Board of Directors to repurchase shares
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of the Company’s common stock. Consequently, we may, from time to time, either directly or through agents, repurchase
our common stock in the open market, through negotiated purchases or otherwise, at prices and on terms satisfactory to
the Company. Depending on market prices and other conditions relevant to the Company, such purchases may be
discontinued at any time. The Company's Board of Directors initiated an annual dividend policy of $.20 per share in
January 2003 and increased the annual dividend policy to $.40 per share in January 2004. The aggregate payments for
2004 are expected to be approximately $2.5 million.

The Company generated cash from operations of $14.3 million in 2003 compared to $16.1 million in 2002 and
$19.8 million in 2001. The increase in cash received from customers and cash paid to suppliers and employees for 2003
was due primarily to higher sales. Higher tax payments in 2003 compared to 2002 resulted from timing of estimated tax
payments and higher income. The decrease in cash generated from operations for 2002 compared to 2001 is aftributable
primarily to reduced collections from customers as a majority of the sales increase occurred in the fourth quarter of 2002
and was collected in the first quarter of 2003. Offsetting this decrease in 2002 was lower tax payments required during
2002 as overpayments in 2001 were applied to 2002. The cash generated from operations in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was
used to repurchase common stock, reduce borrowings, pay cash dividends and fund capital expenditures, reflecting the
Company's balanced strategy regarding its use of capital.

Net cash used by investing activities was $1.3 million in 2003 compared to $342,000 and $4.2 million in 2002 and
2001, respectively. The decline in capital expenditures for both 2003 and 2002 compared to 2001 is due to the relocation
of a significant portion of the machinery and equipment from a previously closed facility to other Company facilities and
used in lieu of normal replacements. The expenditures in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were primarily for plant and equipment
and other assets in the normal course of business. In 2002, the Company received net proceeds of $695,000 from the
sale of real estate at its former West End, North Carolina facility.

Net cash used by financing activities was $19.7 million, $8.5 million and $15.4 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. In 2003 and 2002, cash from operations and proceeds from the exercise of stock options provided cash for
purchase and retirement of the Company's common stock and senior debt payments. In 2003, these funds were also
used to pay cash dividends. In 2001, cash from operations and proceeds from the issuance of $10.0 million in senior
notes provided cash for reduction of borrowings under the revolving credit facility, senior debt payments, capital
expenditures and purchase and retirement of the Company’s common stock. In 2002, 85,914 shares of the Company's
common stock were surrendered by an executive officer to the Company in payment of a $2.6 million outstanding loan
and accrued interest, relating to stock option exercises in 2000.

At December 31, 2003, fong-term debt including current maturities was $22.7 million. Debt service requirements are
$7.0 million in 2004, $4.3 million in 2005, $2.9 million in 2006 and $2.9 million in 2007. As of December 31, 2003,
approximately $25.0 million of additional borrowmgs were available under the Company's revolving credit facility and cash
onhand was $2.5 million.

The following tabie sets forth the Company’s contractual cash obligations and other commercial commitments at
December 31, 2003:

Payment due or commitment expiration

Less than Over
Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
Contractua! cash obligations:
Long-term debt $22,700 $7,014 $7,114 $4,286 $4,286
Operating leases 1,125 774 284 57

Total contractual cash obligations ~ $23,825 $7.788 $7.408 $4.343 $4.286

Other commercial commitments:

Letters of credit $ 2,382 $2.382
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management has chosen accounting policies that are nacessary to accurately and fairly report the
Company's operational and financial position. Below are the critical accounting policies that involve the most
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of the Company's consaiidated financial
statements.

Allowance for doubtful accounts — The Company maintains an ailowance for doubtiul receivables for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of trade customers {o make required payments. The Company
provides an allowance for specific customer accounts where collection is doubtful and also provides an
allowance for other accounts based on historical coilection and write-off experience. Judgment is critical
because some customers have experienced financial difficulties. As the financial condition of these customers
change, the level of such allowances will be reevaluated. During 2003, the credit exposure related to certain
customer accounts experiencing financial difficulties declined resulting in a decrease in the aliowance for
doubtful receivables. .

inventory vatuation — Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost for all inventories is
determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The Company evaluates its inventory to determine excess -
or slow moving items based on current order activity and projections of future demand. For those items
identified, the Company estimates its market value or net sales value based on current trends. Those items
having a net sales value less than cost are written down to their net sales value. This process recognizes
projected inventory losses when they become evident rather than: at the time they are sold.

Long-lived assets — Preperty and intangibie assets are reviewed for possible impairment when events
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Assumptions and estimates used in the
evaluation of impairment may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets, which could result in impairment
charges in future periods. Depreciation and amortization policies reflect judgments on the estimated useful lives
of assets.

Tax Contingencies — Tax contingencies are recorded to address potential exposures involving tax positions
the Company has taken that could be challenged by taxing authorities. These potential exposures result from
the varying applications of statutes, rules, regulations and interpretations. The Company’s estimate of the value
of its tax contingencies contains assumptions based on past experiences and judgments about potential actions
by taxing jurisdictions. The ultimate resolution of these matters may be greater or iess than the amount that the
Company has accrued.

Pension costs — The Company’s nension expense is developed from actuarial valuations. Inherent in these
valuations are key assumptions, including discount rates and expected return on plan assets, which are usually
updated on an annual basis at the beginning of each year. The Company is required to consider current market
conditions, including changes in interest rates, in making these assumptions. Changes in pension costs may
occur in the future due to changes in these assumptions. The key assumptions used in developing 2003 net
pension costs were 6.5% for both the discount rate and expected return on plan assets compared to 7.25% and
7.50%, respectively, in 2002. As a result, net pension cost increased $301,000, exciuding the impact of
settlement expense. In esiablishing its expected return on plan assets assumption, the Company reviews asset
allocation considering plan maturity and develops return assumptions based on different asset classes adjusting
for plan operating expenses. Actual asset over/under performance compared to expected returns will
respectively decrease/increase unrecognized loss. The change in the unrecognized loss will change
amortization cost in upcoming periods. A cne percentage point change in the expected return assumption in the
current year would have resulted in a change in pension expense of approximately $150,000. Net pension cost
for 2004 is expected to increase slightly, primarily as a result of a reduction in the discount rate from 6.5% to
6.0%.
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The Company does not have transactions or relationships with “special purpose” entities, and the Company does not
have any off balance sheet financing other than normal operating leases primarily for showroom and certain technology
equipment.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks

Because the Company's obligation under its revolving credit facility bears interest at a variable rate, the Company
is sensitive to changes in prevailing interest rates. A one-percentage point fluctuation in market interest rates would not
have had a material impact on earnings in 2003.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements and schedule listed in ltems 15(a)(1) and (a)(2) hereof are incorporated
herein by reference and are filed as part of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

item 9a. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. The Company'’s principal executive officer and principal financial
officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-14(c)), based on their evaluation of such controls and procedures conducted as of the end of the period covered
by this report, are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’'s management, including its principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

{b) Changes in internal controis. There have been no significant changes in the Company's internal controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation referred to above.

PART Ill

item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

information relating to the directors of the Company is set forth under the caption “Election of Directors” of the Company’'s
proxy statement (the “2004 Proxy Statement”) for its annual meeting of shareholders scheduled for April 14, 2004. Such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information relating to compliance with section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is set forth under the caption “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of the Company's 2004 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

information relating to the Board of Directors determinations concerning whether a member of the Audit Committee of the
Board is a “financial expert” as that term is defined under ltem 401(h) of Regutation S-K is set forth under the caption
“Board and Board Committee Information” of the Company’s 2004 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.
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Information concerning the executive officers of the Company is included in Part | of this report under the
caption “Executive Officers of the Company.”

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to the Company's associates, including the principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or person performing similar
functions. The Company’s code of ethics is posted on its website at www.stanleyfurniture.com.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to executive compensation for the Company is set forth under the caption "Compensation of
Executive Officers” of the Company's 2004 Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owhers and Management

Information for the Company relating to this item is set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” of the Company’s 2004 Proxy Statement. Such information is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
None

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information for the Company relating to this item is set forth under the caption “Independent Public Accountants”
of the Company’s 2004 Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Documents filed as a part of this Report:

(1) The following consolidated financial statements are included in this report on Form 10-K:

Report of independent Auditors

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2003

(b} The following reports on Form 8-K were filed by the Registrant during the last quarter of the period covered by
this report:
A report on Form 8-K was filed October 14, 2003 to announce the Board of Directors authorization of
additional funds for its stock repurchase program and quarterly cash dividend.

17




(©)
3.1

32
41

42

4.3

44

45

4.6

4.7

Exhibits:

The Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-19938) for the year ended December 31, 1998).

By-laws of the Registrant as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to the Registrant's Form
10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended September 27, 2003).

The Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Registrant as curmently in effect (incorporated by
reference to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 hereto).

Note Agreement dated February 15, 1994 between the Registrant and the Prudential insurance Company
of America (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Registrant's Form 10-K (Commission File No.
0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1993).

Letter Amendment, dated October 14, 1996, to Note Agreements, dated February 15, 1994 and June 29,
1995, between the Registrant and The Prudential insurance Company of America (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter
ended September 29, 1996).

Letter Amendment, dated June 16, 1997, to Note Agreements, dated February 15, 1994 and June 28,
1995, between the Registrant and The Prudential Insurance Company of America (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Statement on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) filed
July 9, 1997).

Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement, dated as of June 29, 1995, among the Company, The
Prudential Insurance Company of America and the affiliates of Prudentiai who become Purchasers as
defined therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form 8-K (Commission File
No. 0-14938) filed December 2, 1997).

Amendment, dated as of May 10, 1999, to Note Agreements, dated February 15, 1994 and June 29, 1995,
between the Registrant and The Prudentia! Insurance Company of America (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended June 26,
1999).

Private Shelf Agreement dated as of September 9, 1999, as amended as of April 26, 2001, among the
Company, The Prudentiai insurance Company of America and the affiliates of Prudential who became
purchasers as defined therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form 10Q
(Commission File No 0-14938) for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Pursuant to Regulation S-K, ltem 601(b)(4)(iii), instruments evidencing long term debt less than 10% of the

Registrant's total assets have been omitted and will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
upon request.

10.1

Employment Agreement made as of January 1, 1991 between Albert L. Prillaman and the Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938)
for the year ended December 31, 1991).(2)

@)

Management contract or compensatory plan
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10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

107

10.8

109

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Lease dated February 23, 1987 between Stanley Interiors Corporation and Southemn Fumniture Exposition
Building, Inc. d/b/a Southern Fumiture Market Center (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the
Registrant's Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1987).

Lease dated June 30, 1987 between A. Allan McDonald, Virginia Cary McDonald, C. R. McDonald,
Dorothy V. McDonald, and Lillian S. McDonald, as lessor, and Staniey Interiors Corporation, as lessee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant's Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-
14938) for the year ended December 31, 1987).

Supplemental Retirement Plan of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc., as restated effective January 1, 1993
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938)
for the year ended December 31, 1993).(2)

First Amendment to Supplemental Retirement Plan of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc., effective
December 31, 1995, adopted December 15, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Registrant's Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1995).(2)

Stanley Interiors Corporation Deferred Compensation Capital Enhancement Plan, effective January 1,
1986, as amended and restated effective August 1, 1987 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1(Commission File No. 0-14938), No. 33-7300).(2)

1992 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8
No. 33-58396).(2)

1994 Stock Option Plan. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant's Form 10-K
(Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1994).(2)

1994 Executive Loan Pfan. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant's Form 10-K
{Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1994).(2)

Employment Agreement dated as of June 1, 1996, between Douglas |. Payne and the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938)
for the quarter ended June 30, 1996).(2)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of October 1, 1996, to the Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1,
1991, between the Registrant and Albert L. Prillaman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended September 29, 1996).(2)

2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporate by reference to Exhibit A to the Registrant's Proxy
Statement (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the special meeting of stockholders held on August 24,
2000). (2)

Amendment No. 2 to The Stanley Fumiture Company, Inc. 1992 Stock Option Plan dated as of July 1,
2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-
14938) for the quarter ended September 1, 2000). (2)

Amendment No. 1 to The Stanley Fumiture Company, Inc. 1994 Stock Option Plan dated as of July 1,
2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-
14938) for the quarter ended September 1, 2000).(2)

(2)

Management contract or compensatory plan
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.18

10.20

10.21

21

23

31.1

3.2

32.1

32.2

Employment Agreement made as of April 9, 2001 between Jeffrey R. Scheffer and the Registrant
(incorporatéd by reference to Exhibit 10.1 o the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938)
for the quarter ended June 30, 2001). (2)

Option Agreement, dated April 30, 2001, between the Registrant and Jeffery R. Scheffer (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter
ended September 29, 2001). (2)

Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, between Stanley Fumiture Company, Inc. and Albert L. Prillaman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant's Form 8-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) filed
on April 25, 2002). (2)

Second Amendment to Supplemental Retirement Plan of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc. effective
January 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Registrant's Form 10-K (commission file
No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 2002). (2)

Second Amendment, dated March 1, 2003, to the Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 1991,
between the Registrant and Albert L. Prillaman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant's Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended March 29, 2003). (2)

First Amendment, dated March 1, 2003, to the Employment Agreement, dated April 9, 2001, between
the Registrant and Jeffrey R. Scheffer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Form 10-Q (Commission File No 0-14938) for the quarter ended March 29, 2003). (2)

Credit Agreement, dated August 29, 2003, between the Regisirant and SouthTrust Bank (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the
quarter ended September 27, 2003).

List of Subsidiaries(1)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP(1)

Certification by Jeffrey R. Scheffer, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectlon
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(1)

Certification by Douglas |. Payne, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as-adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(1)

Certification of Jeffrey R. Scheffer, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, pursuantto 18 U. S. C. .
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

Certification of Douglas |. Payne, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, pursuantto 18 U. S. C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

Filed herewith
Management contract or compensatory plan
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.

February 20, 2004 By: /sileffrey R. Scheffer
Jeffrey R. Scheffer
President, and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/Albert L. Prillaman Chairman and Director February 20, 2004
{(Albert L. Prillaman)

[slJeffrey R. Scheffer President and Chief Executive Officer February 20, 2004
(Jeffrey R. Scheffer) ‘ and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)
[s/Douglas |. Payne Executive Vice President — Finance February 20, 2004
(Douglas I. Payne) and Administration and

Secretary (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

{s/Robert G. Culp, Il Director February 20, 2004
(Robert G. Culp, 1lI)
[siMichael P. Haley Director February 20, 2004
(Michael P. Haley)

Director February 20, 2004
(Thomas L. Millner)
{s/T. Scott Mclihenny, Jr. Director February 20, 2004

(T. Scott Mcllhenny, Jr.)
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Report of independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Stanley Furniture Company, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Stanley Fumiture Company, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, and the
resuits of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on.our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonabie basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its éccounting policy
for goodwill amortization during 2002.

foraeZidoeeCopnr £ L7

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Greensboro, North Carolina
February 13, 2004
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
SN vttt sttt ae s s b ae e as et aeeat e s nraabana s ns et ennnes
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $2,546 and $2,633................
Inventories:
FINISNEd GOOUS .....c.eeeee et et et e s
WOTK-IN-PIOCESS .....veceeirierresrenrinn e seessecvnrensseessessnssnesrssnensovassassssassnssans
RAW MALEIIAIS........oioceeeeiicciiieies st see e st rresseesessteenns
TOtal INVENEOTIES ....eeveeeececcecc et sttt s re s re e otesaens

Prepaid expenses and other current assets.......c.ocveemireneresesnens
Deferred iNCOME tAXES ...covieeeeeiceeeeie et
TOtal CUITENT @SSELS ... oottt e sere st et s beereeeens

Property, plant and equipment, Net ..o rcisen s sesreneas ;

GOOAWIL ...ttt e et st sassn et s raarn e srestansteannes

OtNEE @SSELS ....eeovriceiiceeeter et sa e b e e e bssene v e re st e sae e sraeasereais .
TOlA) SIS ..ot e et a s

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt..........ccoeeiiei e,
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE ... et
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits...........coovveevcrinniinc e,
Other acCrued EXPENSES........cuceeevervveieeeeie e crererer e srse e ssess e sens
Total current Habilities .......cccourveiieiee e e,

Long-term debt, exclusive of current maturities ............coecvvnvnrccneneen,
Deferred iNCOME taXS.......c.c.eccciverrienrrree et sesertesesesesesensesesieseens
Other long-term liabilities .........ccvvre e,

Total HabilIIES .......vvrncee e ns

Commitments and Contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $.02 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized,
6,201,047 and 6,568,717 shares issued and outstanding.............c........
Capital in excess of par value (net of stock option loans)........c.cccceeveee.
Retained €amings ........ccovuirerirenrceereree e e et eee et s
Accumulated other comprehensive 0SS ..........ccccceveveeiieicvcecceeie e
Total StocknOIdErs' @QUILY.......cc.eeriveeeree e e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .......ccccevevvienreccrienine,

The accompanying notes are an integral part

of the consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2003 2002
$ 2,509 $ 9,227
30,120 27,832
37,815 35,537
7,638 6,922
9,185 11,699
54,638 54,158
2,855 1,311
2,855 2,876
92,977 95,404
55,154 .. 59,539 -
9,072 .8.072 -
7.000 -8 470
$ 7,014 $ 6,914
10,595 13,386
9,511 9,781
1,402 2.379
28,522 32,460
15,686 22,700
12,560 13,084
4877 4.554
61,645 72,798
124 131
3,819 14,757
98,680 84,799
_{65)
102,558 99,687



STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, iNC.,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF iNCOME

- {tin thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2003 2002 2001

NEL SAIES ...oociiiiicrerecce e e $260,641 $239,485 $234,322
COost OF SAIBS ..ottt 198,788 180,905 181,356
Restructuring and related charges (Note 8)................... 3,548 2,290

Gross Profit.........coeerieieenisiernseieesr e e seeeis 61,853 55,032 50,676
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............... 35,637 32,671 30,482
Unusual charge (Note 9).......cccoeciciiciieciecicriee 2,800
Restructuring and related charges (Note 8)................... 733

Operating iNCoOME..........cooiicieeee e 26,216 22,361 16,661
Other expense (income), Net .......cccoevvvveeeiicivieiiieein, (203) (219) 47
INtErest EXPENSE....vcceceeeiercer v ebe e e evresare s 2.748 3,090 4.007

Income before iINCoOmMe taxes.......ccvveeverrvienrecrecenonennen. 23,671 19,490 12,607
INCOME tAXES ...oiiiieer e eeesiee st st ee s rve e s r e ereeerren s 8,521 6.919 4,286

NELINCOME ..ottt st e e $ 15150 $ 12,571 $ 8321
Earnings per share:

BaSIC.....coiveriieirereni ettt st v $__240 $ 190 $__1.26

DIUted ..o $ 234 $ 185 $ 121
Weighted average shares outstanding:

BaSIC...cii i e e 6,326 ~__6,609 6,610

Diluted.......coicecirre e 06,462 6,782 6,900

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
. For each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2003 . __ _
: - (inthousandsy~
Accumuliated
Capital in Stock Cther

Common Stock  Excess of Option Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Par Value Loans Eamings Loss Total

Balance at January 1, 2001 ..o 6596 $132 $18,160 $(2,722)  $63,807 $ 79,477
Net iNCOME ..o s 8,321 8,321
Purchase and retirement of StocK.........cccoveviivrieinenne (86) (2) (1,971) (1,973)
Exercise of stock Options ... 133 3 819 (16) 806
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options .................... 529 529
Stock option loan payments............ccovevvcnrnnciniiencenne P 134 134
Balance at December 31, 2001 .....co.occvvnrinienrcrns 6,643 133 17,537 (2,604) 72,228 87,284
NEtINCOME ..o e 12,571 12,571
Purchase and retirement of StoCK.............ccccvemerenn. {158) (2) (3,064) (3,066)
Issuance of stock to Stanley Retirement Plan............ 49 1 1,179 1,180
Exercise of Stock OpHONS .........coovciirrcirncricninrcannnan. 121 2 1,199 (72) 1,129
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options............cce... 871 871
Stock option 1oan payments..........cccevevereeerceeernenn. _(88) _(3) 2949 2860 (292)
Balance at December 31, 2002 ...........cccoovevacnanann 6,569 131 14,773 (16) 84,799 99,687
Net income 15,150 15,150
Minimum pension liability, net of
deferred income tax beneflt of $40..................... $ (65) —_(e5)
Comprehensive income 15,085
Purchase and retirement of Stock ........coomuerenenens (566) {11) (14,769) (8 (14,788)
Exercise of stock options 198 4 2,345 2,349
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options............... 1,475 1,475
Stock option 10an payments...........cevcerveersssensesnens 1" 11
Dividends paid, $0.20 per share.......... rersrasresernnegens o {1,261) {1,261)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ..........cooumicarvercnecns 6,201 §124 $3824 §___(5 $98.680 &  (65) $102,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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- STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,
, 003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from CUSIOMEIS.......cccoveeveiercceraenrienenens $258,589 $ 235,017 $ 241,273
Cash paid to suppliers and employees ..........c.ccevveveveean. (231,712) (213,794) (212,169)
Interest paid........coccvicienrire e (2,793) (3,155) (4,011)
Income taxes paid ..o (9,740) (1.949) (5,290)
Net cash provided by operating activities............c......... 14,344 16,119 19,803
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures ...........ccccvvvevnecinecninescnne e (1,243) (1,037) (4,172)
10 1131 PO U OOV (104) 695 {71)
Net cash used by investing activities.............ccoueeeevenes (1,347) (342) {4.243)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchase and retirement of common stock..................... (14,788) (3,066) (1,973)
Issuance of senior NOtes ..o 10,000
Repayment of senior notes............ccceceueenee et e nnes (6,914) (6,839) (6,715)
Dividends paid........ccoceunaee. O {1,261)
Repayment of revolving credit facility ...........c.cccoveevnnnne {600) (18,401)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options..........ccccvevenenne 2,360 1,205 940
Proceeds from insurance policy loans.........c..cccooeceneenen, 838 795 719
Net cash used by financing activities............ccccorvevenane (19.715) _(8,505) (15.430)
Net increase (decrease) in ash......cocveenvcrnvnieversecnnnes {6,718) 7,272 130
Cash atbeginning of year ... veciecc e 9,227 1,955 1.825
Cash at end of Year..........cvvruverereeenersrese e $ 2509 $ 9227 $ 1955

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include Staniey Furniture Company, Inc. {the “Company”) and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and fransactions have been eliminated. The Company
is a leading designer and manufacturer of wood furniture exclusively targeted at the upper-medium price range of
the residential market.

The Company operates in one business segment. Substantially all revenues result from the sale of residential
fumiture products. Substantially all of the Company's trade accounts receivable are due from retailers in this
market, which consists of a large number of entities with a broad geographical dispersion.

Revenue Recognition _
Revenue is recognized at the time risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the buyer.

Inventories
inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost for all inventories is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method based upon the
estimated useful lives. Gains and losses related to dispositions and retirements are included in income.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to income as incurred; renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Capitalized Software Cost

The Company amortizes certain purchased computer software costs using the straight-line method over the
economic lives of the related products not to exceed five years. Unamortized cost at December 31, 2003 and 2002
was $189,000 and $237,000, respectively.

income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined based on the difference between the consolidated financial statement
and income tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences
are expected to reverse. Deferred tax expense represents the change in the deferred tax assetfliability balance.
Income tax credits are reported as a reduction of income tax expense in the year in which the credits are
generated.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company's long-term debt is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the
incremental borrowing rates currently available to the Company for joans with similar terms and maturities. At
December 31, 2003, the fair value is not materially different than its carrying value. The fair value of trade
receivables, trade payables and letters of credit approximate the carrying amount because of the short maturity of
these instruments.

Pension Plans

The Company's funding policy is to contribute to all qualified plans annually an amount equal to the normal
cost and a portion of the unfunded liability, but not to exceed the maximum amount that can be deducted for
federal income tax purposes.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on the average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted
earnings per share reflects the increase in average common shares outstanding that would result from the
assumed exercise of outstanding stock options, calculated using the treasury stock method.

Stock Options

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 in accounting for stock options and
discloses the fair value of options granted as permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123.
No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the common stock at date of grant.

The estimated per share weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001
was $11.45, $14.36 and $14.70, respectively, on the date of grant. A risk-free interest rate of 3.9%, 4.0% and
5.1% for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and a volatility rate of 40 to 50% with an expected life of 8 to 10 years
was assumed in estimating the fair value.

The following table summarizes the pro forma effects assumirig compensation cost for such awards had been
recorded based upon the estimated fair value (in thousands, except per share data):

2003 2002 2001

Net income as reported...........ccoevvevneinneceeeeiieenens $15,150 $12,571 $8,321
Deduct: Total stock-based employee

compensation expense determined under

fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects ..o 1,618 1,783 1,940

Pro forma net income ...........c.ccoeeecerenneeeennnennnn, $13.532 $10.788 $ 6381
Earnings per share: :

Basic ~ a5 reported...........ccceeveemvereve s $ 240 $ 1.90 $ 126

Basic — Pro formMa.......veeereeeeoreereee e eeens $ 214 $ 163 § 097

Diluted — as reported .........cc.cocevvceeeecinee s $ 234 $ 185 $ 121

Diluted — Pro formMa ....v.eeeececeereeeeerest e $ 211 $ 180 $ 093

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Changes in such estimates may affect amounts
reported in future periods.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciable
lives (in thousands)
(in years) 2003 2002

Land and bUulldingS ........cccceveveecveeiieceiccee e 20 to 50 $ 38,606 $ 38,237
Machinery and equipment ..........ccccccovcivecrirccrnnennene 51012 74,550 74,204
Office furniture and equipment..........ccccceveninninnne 3t010 1,846 1.710

Property, plant and equipment, at cost................... 115,002 114,151
LLess accumulated depreciation.............ccocccvnnenennne, 59,848 54,612

Property, plant and equipment, net ............cc.ccecnce. $55154 $ 59,539

3. Debt
(in thousands)
2003 2002

7.28% Senior notes due through March 15, 2004 ..........c..cccceven.e. $4,286 $ 8,571
7.57% Senior note due through June 30, 2005...........ccocovereeeeen 2,700 3,800
7.43% Senior notes due through November 18, 2007 .................. 5,714 7,143
6.94% Senior notes due through May 3, 2011 ..o, 10,000 10,000
Revolving credit facility .......cccoovveevnincsr e

TOMAE oottt e r e 22,700 29,614
Less current MatUnties......c.ooveeiive e e 7,014 6.914

Long-term debt, exclusive of current maturities ... $15,686 $22,700

During 2003, the Company entered into a new revolving credit agreement. The new agreement
provides for maximum borrowings of $25.0 million and matures in August 2005. Interest is payable monthiy at
the reserve adjusted LIBOR plus .50% per annum (1.62% on December 31, 2003) or, at the Company's
option, prime minus 1.0% (3.0% on December 31, 2003). The Company utlizes letters of credit to
collateralize certain insurance policies and inventory purchases. Outstanding letters of credit at December 31,
2003, were $2.4 million. At December 31, 2003, no borrowings were outstanding under the revolving credit
facility.

The above loan agreements require the Company to ‘maintain certain financial covenants. The
Company's ability to pay dividends with respect to its common stock and to repurchase its common stock is
restricted to $25.0 miliion plus 50% of the Company's consolidated net eamings, adjusted for net cash
proceeds received by the Company from the sale of its stock and the amount of payments for redemption,
purchase or other acquisition of its capital stock. subsequent to January 1, 1999. At December 31, 2003,
these covenants limit funds available to pay dividends and repurchase the Company’s common stock to $23.3
million.

Annual principal requirements are $7.0 million in 2004, $4.3 million in 2005, $2.9 million in 2006, $2.9
million in 2007 and $1.4 million in 2008.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Current:

Federal ... $8,190 $4,515 $3,980
StAE ..o 794 294 554
Total CUTeNt .....ccev e e 8,984 4,809 4534

Defeired:
Federal ... (400) 1,973 (228)
StAE v s (63) 137 (20)
Total deferred........oovccveveimeecnerene e {463) 2,110 (248)
INCOME 1aXES ..o $8,521 $6.919 $4,286

A reconciliation of the difference between the federal statutory income tax rate and the effective
income tax rate follows:

2003 2002 2001
Federal statutory rate ..........coevvveveeervvrnnne 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State tax, net of federal benefit ................ 26 2.8 2.1
State tax crediis and adjustments............. (1.0) (1.6) (2.7)
GOoOAWIll ... 9
Life inSurance.......ccooeeevccnrieencnnereeans (1.0) (1.1) (1.5)
Other, net.......cccveirricene, peerrn e _4 _ 4 _2
Effective income taxrate .........cccocevnene. 36.0% 35.5% 34.0%

The income tax effects of temporary differences that comprise deferred tax assets and liabilities at
December 31 follow (in thousands):

2003 2002

Current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Accounts receivable ... $ 961 $ 1,007
Employee benefits ..o, 1,847 1,721
Other accruad XPENSES .:.cccvvvevieereiereeeeeerreecsreeteereeienes 47 148
Net cuirent deferred tax @sset ......cococverveeeveeennnineenn, $2.855 $ 2,876

Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment ...........cccoevcineeienneercnene, $11,799 $11,687
Employee benefits ... S 761 1,397
Net noncurrent deferred tax fiability ........ccocoeeeeeieinenn, $12.560 $13,084
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. Stockholders’ Equity

The Company used $14.8 million of cash to purchase 566,000 shares of its stock on the open market at
an average price of $26.15 in 2003. For the three years ending December 31, 2003, the Company has used
$19.8 million of cash to purchase 810,000 shares of its common stock on the open market at an average price

of $24.50. At December 31, 2003, approximately $10.2 million remains under the current Board of Dlrectors
authorization to. repurchase shares of- the Company's common stock : T

in addmon to its common stock,ﬁthe.Companys authorized capital includes 1,000,000 shares of "blank check™
preferred stock. None was outstanding during the three years ended December 31, 2003. The Board of Directors
is authorized to issue such stock in series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences, rights, fimitations and
restrictions with respect to any series of such shares. Such "blank check" preferred stock may rank prior to

common stock as to dividend rights, tiquidation preferences or both, may have full or limited voting rights and may
be convertible into shares of common stock.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated using the following share data (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average shares outstanding
for basic calculation .........c.cccioiienncnnncnn 6,326 6,609 6,610
Effect of stock options........cceeeevevivevricirenn. 136 173 290
Weighted average shares outstanding
for diluted calculation...........cccccoeeueenrennen. 6,462 6.782 6.900
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. Employee Stock Plans

The Company's stock option plans provide for the granting of stock options up to an aggregate of
2,500,000 shares of common stock to key employees. The exercise price may not be less than the fair
market value of the Company's common stock on the grant date. Granted options generally vest 20%
annually. At December 31, 2003, 241,000 shares were available for grant.

Activity for the three years ended December 31, 2003 follows:
Number Weighted-Average

‘ of shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 20071 ......ccccvvevvevincrnerenen 806,464 $15.56
LaPSEA..... it e (13,000) 26.03
EXEICISEA. ...coiieieiviere st reen ettt sese s snseanens (132,952) 6.19
Granted ...oooe i 550,000 27.88
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 ........ccoccvvvvvcviennns 1,210,512 22.07
LaAPSEa.....coiiieee e e s (62,000) 26.18
EXErCISEU....ccuvceciricree et s s (120,756) 9.88
Granted ..........ccccveevrriericeccee e er e rarees 45,000 - 26.48
Outstanding at December 31, 2002...........ccooeeevevveennnene 1,072,758 20.73
Lapsed...... et as e seenen {60,000) 26.33
EXErCISEd ..c.euoeeccrernreencarecnrerssssenserseesssasessssnsnasssnseras (197,756) 11.88
Granted........cocecnerrerererersrareuseennnsesssnssesasssssssasassnansaes 4,000 21.90
Outstanding at December 31, 2003.............ccccecvurrcnnas 819,000 $25.95

Summarized information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2003
follows:

Outstanding Exercisable
Range of Average  Average Average
Exercise Price Shares Life Price Shares Price
Up to $20 38,000 33 $10.45 38,000 $10.45
$20 to $27 316,000 7.2 2462 244,000 24,75
$27 t0 $36 465,000 8.0 28.12 281,000 28.12
819,000 s $25.95 563.000  $2547
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company maintains a defined contribution plan covering substantially all of its employees and
makes discretionary matching and profit sharing contributions. The total plan cost, including employer
contributions, was $1.5 million in 2003, $1.4 million in 2002 and $1.5 million in 2001.

Pension Plans

Benefits do not accrue under the Company’s pension plans after 1995. The financial status of the
plans at December 31 follows (in thousands):

2003 2002
Stanley Supple- Stanley Supple-
Retirement mental Retirement mental
Pian Plan Plan Plan
Change in benefit obligation;
Beginning benefit obligation...........cc........ $14,915 $1,750 $14,722 $1,499
Interest cost....oooeeee e 917 112 1,042 110
Actuarial 108S (gain)........cccoecevenrerenirnenn 332 111 1,692 202
Benefits paid.........cooeeveiv e (1,957) (82) (3,126) {61)
Settlement COst........oviviiiie __ 364 585
Ending benefit obligation...................... 14,571 1.891 14,915 1,750
Change in plan assets:
Beginning fair value of plan assets.......... 14,949 15,423
Actual return on plan assets .................... 2,125 (1,598)
Employer contributions ...........cco.cccvenanee, 82 4,250 61
Benefits paid..........ccoccoveieceeveeee e {1,957) {82) (3.126) (61)
Ending fair value of plan assets........... 15,117 14,949
Funded status..........cccoonroreeverecen e, 546 {1,891) 34 (1,750)
Unrecognized 10SS (gain) ........cocccvveeeceinnnn. 5,938 105 7.658
Net amount recognized...........cc.co.cvveenne.. § 6484 $(1,786) $ 7.692 $(1.750)
Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet:
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost.............. $ 6,484 $(1,891) $7.692 $(1,750)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . 105
Net amount recognized........c.cceeveureeas $ 6,484 $(1,786) $7.692 $(1,750)

The Company made contributions totaling $4.3 million to the Stanley Retirement Plan during 2002,
The 2002 contributions included $1.2 million in Company stock. No contributions were made in 2003.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. Employee Benefit Plans {continued)

~ The Company maintains an investment policy for the management of the assets of The Stanley
Retirement Plan. The objective of this policy is to build a structured portfolio designed to achieve the most
desirable balance between investment return and asset protection by investing in equities of high quality
companies and in high quality fixed income securities which are broadly balanced and represent all market
sectors. The investment structure provides the necessary liquidity for payment of retirement benefits. The
target allocation and the actual ailocation for assets of The Stanley Retirement Plan at December 31, 2003
and December 31, 2002, the measurement date, are as follows:

Target
Allocation Percentage of Assets
2003 2002
EQUItY oo, 30 to 90% 54.6% 43.5%
Fixed income........ccccviviviineecininnnn 30 to 60% 35.0 23.7
(012 7= SRR 3to25% 10.4 32.8
Total oo 100.0% 100.0%

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Stanley Retirement Plan assets included Company stock with a
fair value of $1.1 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

The benefit obligation of the Supplemental Plan, a nonqualified plan, exceeded the accrued benefit
cost at December 31, 2003. The net accrued benefit cost of the Supplemental Plan includes a minimum
pension liability of $105,000 at year-end 2003.

Components of pension cost follow (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Interest CoSt .......oooovvvriieirire e $1,028 $1,152 $1,195
Expected return on plan assets........ {958) (1,117) {1,247)
Net amortization and deferral............ 573 307 45
Net (credit) cost ........ococcvrercnnnnn, 643 342 “(7)
Settlement expense ... 682 1,674 468
Total expense ........ccccvevereverienenen, $1.325 §2016 $ 461

The assumptions used to determine the plans' financial status and pension cost were:

2003 2002 2001
Discount rate for funded status.................. 6.00% 6.50% 7.25%
Discount rate for pension cost.................. 6.50% 7.25% 7.60%
Retum on assets.......cccceveveecece e 6.50% 7.50% 7.50%
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

The Company's pension expense is developed from actuarial valuations. Inherent in these valuations are
key assumptions, including discount rates and expected return on plan assets, which are reviewed and updated on
an annual basis at the beginning of each year. The Company is required to consider current market conditions,
including charges in interest rates, in making assumptions. In establishing its expected return on assets
assumption, the Company reviews asset allocation considering plan maturity and develops return assumptions

based on different asset classes adjusting for plan operating expenses. The return assumptions are established

after reviewing historical retums of broader market indexes, as well as historical performance of the investments of
The Stanley Retirement Plan.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions
The Company provides health care benefits to eligible retired employees between the ages of 55 and 65 and

provides life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees from age 55 until death. The plan’s financial status at
December 31, the measurement date, follows (in thousands):

2003 2002
Change in benefit obligation:
Beginning benefit obligation...........ccccceerevevrenenecncninnnas $ 3,137 $ 3,026
SEIVICE COSt ...ttt st n e se et n e nras 58 48
INETESE COSt ..ottt 187 211
ACtUarial l0SS ...t 78 276
Plan participants’ contributions ............ccocoveiercniinsicnenns 171 187
Benefits paid......... et et erenn deeeeeetreae et nnrearens {298) (611)
Ending benefit obligation ............cccoceveerninencnnnn, s 3,233 3,137
Change in plan assets:
Beginning fair value of plan assets............ccccoveecieinnenns
Employer contributions..........ccccovecerinieiene e 227 424
Plan participants’ contributions .............ccocecvvviermnineeenen, 171 187
Benefits paid.....cccoce e : {328) (611)
Ending fair value of plan assets..........ccvveeecnrcnccninnene
Funded status.......ccoceee e (3,233) (3,137)
UNTecognized NELIOSS ........cvueeeeveerceeeneersese s ssesessssserenns 1,111 1,087
Unrecognized transition obligation .........cccccccovniennnnnene. 1,174 1,304
Accrued benefit CoSt........coiieiieneei e $_(948) $ (746)
Components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost were (in thousands):
2003 2002 2001
SEIVICE COSL ..evcvirerireiee e vttt baers e vonas $ 58 $ 48 $ 40
Interest COSt ........oco i 187 211 222
Amortization of transition obligation..............cccceeeeeeene.. 130 130 130
Amortization and deferral .........c.ccccovevncccininnennene. _53 _47 _40
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost................... $428 $436 $432
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~ STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

The wéighted-average discount rates used in determining the actuarial present value of the projected
benefit obligation were 6.00% in 2003, 6.50% in 2002 and 7.25% in 2001.

~Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31:

' : 2003 2002 2001
Health care cost assumed trend rate for next year....... 8.5% 9.0% 10.0%
Rate that the cost trend rate gradually declines to........ 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to

TEMAIN A ..ot 2011 2011 2011

~'~An increase or decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate of one percentage point in each future
year wouid affect the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2003, by approximately
$80,000 and the annual postretirement benefit cost by approximately $41,000.

Deferred Compensation

The Company has a deferred compensation plan, funded with life insurance policies, which permits certain
management employees to defer portions of their compensation and eam a fixed rate of retum. The accrued
liabilities relating to this plan of $1.6 miliion at both December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 are included in
accrued salaries, wages and benefits and other long-term liabilities. The cash surrender value, net of policy loans,
is included in other assets. Policy loan interest of $911,000, $789,000 and $703,000 was charged to interest
expense in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

8. Restructuring and Related Charges

Beginning in December 2001, the Company has executed a plan to consolidate its manufacturing operations
to maximize production efficiencies as a result of excess capacity created by expanded offshore sourcing.
Manufacturing operations at its former West End, North Carolina facility were phased out during 2002, including
the sale of real estate. The remaining restructuring accrual at December 31, 2003 of $188,000 consists of a lease
obligation. )
9. Unusual Charge

An unusual charge of $2.8 million was recorded in 2001 to write off amounts due from a major customer,
which declared bankruptcy and closed its stores.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10. Goodwill

On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, (“SFAS 142"),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company discontinued goodwill
amortization and tested goodwill of $3.1 million for impairment as of January 1, 2002 and December 31, 2002 and
2003 determining that no impairment loss was necessary. The Company will continue to test goodwill for
impairment at least annually. The following table presents net income on a comparable basis, after adjustment for
goodwill amortization (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2003 2002 2001

Net income:

AS TEPOMEU......ecerriecerie e s e $15,150 $12,571 $ 8,321

Goodwill amortization (net of tax).........c...ccceeven.. 336

Adjusted NetINCOME.........cccoveernrerrrerereeceirennns $15150 $12.571 $8,657

Basic earnings per share:

AS TEPOMEM. ... vttt § 240 $_1.90 S 126

AS BAIUSIEA ... et § 240 $ 180 s 131
Diluted earnings per share: . o

ASTEPOMEd......c.cc ettt $ 234 $ 185 $ 121

As adjusted ... $ 234 $ 1.85 § 125

11. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases showroom space and certain technology equipment. Rental expenses charged to
operations were $1.3 million, $1.2 million and $1.4 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Future minimum
lease payments are approximately as follows: 2004 - $774,000; 2005 - $191,000; 2006 - $103,000; 2007 - $57,000
and 2008 - $0.

in the normal course of business, the Company is involved in claims and lawsuits, none of which currently,

in management's opinion, will have a material adverse affect on the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

NEtINCOME ...
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation.........ccccoov e,
AMOTZAtoN ...
Unusual charge......cevceeninencncnnnrrcesinenen.
Restructuring charge ........ccoveerrerercnvenervesereee e
Deferred income taxes .....cccocvvveeervcnrcriennnnicrennens
Other, Nt
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable...........cocvvivenniececnnienen,
INVENTOMES ...ttt
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .....
ACCOUNLS PaYADIE........occere e
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits...............
Other accrued eXPenses .......ocvreernversesinivenas
Other asSetS.......cccvivvere e e eteeae e
Other long-term liabilities ...........c.ccoovvvccvrennnne.
Net cash provided by operating activities.......

13. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

2003 Quarters: First
Net SaleS.....ccccoeeevencenerennerrnerennn $61,298
Gross profit........ccvceceerererneereenens 14,622
Net iNCOMEe ....cinrirrrierenerecsnesanns 3,466
Net income per share:
BasiC....cccourmnrrnenenrnccnnniminecerans $ .53
Diluted......cccccommeimnercerereernracnens .52
Dividend paid per share............. .05
2002 Quarters:
Net sales......oveccnienseieneenns $59,574
Gross profit.........cceeeecievcieecnne, 11,563
Net income .......ccoovee e 1,867
Net income per share:
BasiC.......ccoovveveriericeeiee e $ .28
Diluted ... 27
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2003
$15,150

5,623
160

(463)
2

(2,288)
(480)

403

(2,791)
(270)
(977)

57
218

$14,344

Second
$61,409
14,565
3,536

$ 54
.53
.05

$55,268
12,621
2615

$ 39
37

(in thousands)

(in thousands, except per share data)

2002 2001
$12,571 $8,321
5,724 5,900
214 565
2,800

1,755 1,990
2,110 (248)
34 29
(3.970) 6,563
(4,636) 4,600
(418) (2,300)
1,545 (7,666)
721 (1,719)
544 1,313
40 49
_(115) (394)
$16.119 $19.803
Third Fourth
$65,227 $72,707
15,641 17,025
3,716 4,432
$ .61 $ .72
59 .70
.05 .05
$61,338 $63,305
15,161 15,687
4,139 3,950
$ 63 $ .60
62 59
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HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share and employee data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997@ 19969
Income Statement:
Net sales $260,641 ‘ $239,485 $234322 $283092 $264717 $247,371  $211,905 $201,905
Cost of sales | 198,788 | 180,905 181,356 214499 196631 186931 159,453 153332
Restructuring charge 3,548 2,290
Gross profit 61,853 55032 50676 68593 68086 60,440 52,452 48,573
Selling, general and administrative expenses | 35,637 32,671 30,482 33,656 33,796 32,496 29,949 30,403
Unusual charge® 2,800
Restructuring charge 733
Operating income . 26,216 T 22361 16,661 34937 34290 27,944 22,503 18,170
Other expense (income) (203) (219) 47 (82) 388 411 276 616
Interest expense 2748 3,090 4007 4,003 3,478 4,164 3,538 3,344
Income before income taxes i 23,671 | 19,490 12,607 31,016 30,424 23,369 18,689 14,210
Income taxes  esa1 L6919 4286 11,476 11,211 8,886 7,102 5.470
Net income $ 15150 § 12571 $ 8321 $ 19540 $ 19213 § 14483 $ 11587 § 8740
Basic earnings per share $ 240 % 190 $ 126 $ 276 $ 270 § 207 $ 138 § 090
Diluted eamings per share '$ 234:$ 185 $ 121 $ 263 $ 247 § 18 $ 125 $ 088
Dividends paid per share® '$ 020
Income statement ratios and other data: i
- —(ross profit as a-percent of net sales :;—~~~23 7%.. 23.0% 21.6% 24.2% 257% 24.4% 24.8% 24.1%
Operating income a5 a percent of net sales | 710, 1% 9.3% 7.1% 12.3% 13.0% 11.3%. 10.6% 9.0%
Net income as a peréent of net sales © 5.8% 5.2% 3.6% 6.9% 7.3% 5.9% 5.5% 4.3%
Income taxes as a percentage of pretax income 36.0% ! 35.5% 34.0% 37.0% 36.8% 38.0% 38.0% 38.5%
Depreciation and amortization® '$ 5,783 Q § 7693 $ 8455 $ 8141 $ 6347 $ 5775 $ 5432 $ 5200

=] 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
{

Balance sheet and other data:

;
Cash '$ 2,509 $ 9227 % 1955 $ 1825 $ 3597 $§ 6791 $ 756 $ 8,126
Inventories 54,638 54,158 49,522 54,423 43,580 46,514 45,730 40,239
Working capital 64,455 1 62,944 51,271 53,759 38531 44,408 41,440 46,225
Total assets 16‘4,203j 172,485 163,003 179,206 170,522 154,374 143235 141510
Long-term debt including current maturities 22,700 2 29,614 37,053 52,169 38,404 43,539 52,577 39,350
Stockholders' equity® | 102,558 99,687 87,294 79,477 79,573 62,368 48,247 61,617
Capital expenditures® '$ 1,243 w $ 1,037 § 4172 $ 6068 $ 25566 $ 6680 $ 4076 $ 3,599
Ratio of total debt to total capitalization” © O 18.1% ] 22.9% 29.8% 39.6% 32.6% 41.1% 52.1% 39.0%
Employees 2,500 | 2,600 3,050 3,350 3,100 2,875 2,800 2,700
Stock repurchases:

Shares ? 566 \ 158 86 869 227 315 2,326 300

Total cost ’ $ 14,788 $ 3066 $ 1973 $ 19754 ¢ 4708 $ 5553 § 25330 $ 2,268
Closing stock price '$ 3150 /% 2325 $ 2377 $ 2413 $ 1838 $ 1825 $ 1394 $ 994

(1) The Company recorded restructuring and related charges in 2002 of $3.6 million (or $.34 per diluted share) and $3.0 million (or $.29 per diluted:share) in 2001
for the closure of a manufacturing facility.

(2) In 2001, the Company recorded a $2.8 million (or $.26 per diluted share) charge to write off amounts due from a major customer.

(3) Amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split, distributed in the form of a stock dividend, on May 15, 1998.

(4) No dividends were paid on the Company's common stock prior to 2003.

(5) 2002 and 2001 include $1.7 million and $2.0 million respectively, for increased depreciation charges resulting from the closure of a manufacturing facility.

(6) The 1999 capital expenditures were primarily for capacity expansion projects including a new facility.

(7) Total capitalization includes total debt and stockholders’ equity.
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